
Table of Contents - December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting
1  Agenda - December 2019.pdf
2  Draft November 2019 Meeting Minutes.pdf
3  2019-12-9 Personnel Actions.pdf
4  RESOLUTION 2019-12-002 -  2020 Board Meeting Schedule.pdf
5  Board Meeting Dates 2020.pdf
6  RESOLUTION 2019-12-003 -  Mollenberg-Betz Project 6 Mechanical Work and Materials.pdf

7  Mollenberg-Betz Project 6 Proposal.pdf
8  RESOLUTION 2019-12-004 -  Ferguson Project 6 Underground Work.pdf
9  Ferguson Proposal - Effluent Disinfection PL20513.pdf
10  RESOLUTION 2019-12-005 -  Award Bid for WTP Electrical Preventative Maint.pdf
11  BID#W2019-03 Annual Electrical Preventative Maintenance Board Agenda Item.pdf
12  RESOLUTION 2019-12-06 - GHD CA CI Services for Project 2.pdf
13  GHD Project 2 CA CI Proposal.pdf
14  RESOLUTION 2019-12-007 -  Award Bid for Maintenance of Elevators.pdf
15  BID #2019-27 Maintenance of Elevators  Dumbwaiters NFWB Agenda Item.pdf
16  RESOLUTION 2019-12-008 -  Authorizing Pro Rata Settlement of Claim for Hydrant Damage.pdf

17  Pro Rata Settlement Proposal.pdf
18  RESOLUTION 2019-12-009 -  Authorizing Settlement of Claim by Heather Dobson.pdf
19  Notice of Claim - Dobson, Heather.pdf
20  RESOLUTION 2019-12-010 Exercise Year 3 Option - Annual Audit.pdf
21  Supporting Document - EFPR Annual Audit Proposal.pdf
22  RESOLUTION 2019-12-011 CPL 2020 Extension Proposal.pdf
23  CPL 2020 Extension Proposal.pdf
24  RESOLUTION 2019-12-012 Extend WTP Sludge Hauling Bid.pdf
25  Modern Extension Request Alum Residue 2019_2020.pdf
26  RESOLUTION 2019-12-013 - Safety Specialist Compensation.pdf
27  RESOLUTION 2019-12-014 - Employment Agreement with Deputy Director of Financial Services.
pdf
28  2019-12-11 DRAFT 2020-2022 Majchrowicz Contract.pdf
29  RESOLUTION 2019-12-015 - Change Order - WTP Caulking Contract.pdf
30  Caulking Contract Change Order.pdf
31  RESOLUTION 2019-12-016 - Settle Riverside Condo. Assn. Claim.pdf
32  Notice of Claim - Riverside Condo Assn - 8121 Valle Dr.pdf
33  RESOLUTION 2019-12-017 -  Authorizing State DOT to Adjust Manhole Elevations Military Rd..pdf

34  DOT Request - Adjustment of Manhole Elevations on Military Road.pdf

2
6

13
14
15

16
18
21
23
24
25
27
29
34
35

39
41
44
45
62
64
81
83
84
86
87

89
90
99

100
104
105

109
111

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 001



Notes: 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 002



1 | P a g e

Regular Session of the 
Niagara Falls Water Board 
December 16, 2019   5:00 PM at 

Michael C. O’Laughlin Municipal Water Plant 

1. Attendance and Preliminary Matters 

Forster____ Kimble ____ Larkin____ Leffler____ O’Callaghan____ 

a. Letters and Communications 

b. Public Comment (All speakers must register with the Chairperson 
prior to roll call and are limited to three minutes per person – total 
time for all speakers may not exceed one hour)   

c. Presentations (None scheduled) 

d. Approval of Minutes from November 25, 2019 Meeting 

2. From the Executive Director 

3. Superintendent 

4. Engineering 

5. Director of Administrative Services – Personnel Items 
a. Staff Requested: 

i. Motion to Approve Personnel Actions and Report  
dated December 9, 2019. 

6. Information Technology (IT) 

7. Director of Financial Services  

8. Other Reports 
a. Questions Regarding Monthly O&M Reports (if any) 
b. Safety 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 003



2 | P a g e

9. General Counsel and Secretary 

10. From the Chairman 

11. Resolutions 

2019-12-001 – [Withdrawn] 

2019-12-002 – 2020 MEETINGS 
a. Schedule of Meeting Dates 

2019-12-003 – FUNDS FOR MOLLENBERG-BETZ TO COMPLETE PROJECT 6 
MECHANICAL WORK, INCLUDING TO FURNISH AND INSTALL CERTAIN 
PUMPS, SENSORS, AND MIXERS 

a. Mollenberg-Betz November 20, 2019 Proposal 

2019-12-004 – FUNDS FOR FERGUSON ELECTRIC TO COMPLETE 
PROJECT 6 DEMOLITION, TEMPORARY WIRING, AND UNDERGROUND 
DUCT BANK WORK 

a. Ferguson October 8, 2019 Quote 

2019-12-005 – AWARDING BID FOR ANNUAL ELECTRICAL PREVENTATIVE 
MAINTENANCE 

a. Bid Tally 

2019-12-006 – AUTHORIZING GHD CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES FOR 
PROJECT 2: GORGE PUMPING STATION REHABILITATION AND 
OUTFALL 003 REDIRECTION 

a. GHD’s October 4, 2019 Proposal 

2019-12-007 – AWARDING BID FOR MONTHLY MAINTENANCE OF 
ELEVATORS 

a. Bid Tally and Award Recommendation Letter 

2019-12-008 – AUTHORIZING PRO RATA SETTLEMENT OF CLAIM FOR 
HYDRANT DAMAGE 

a. Pro Rata Settlement Proposal 

2019-12-009 – AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF CLAIM BY HEATHER 
DOBSON 

a. Notice of Claim  

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 004



3 | P a g e

2019-12-010 – EXERCISING THIRD YEAR OPTION FOR EFPR GROUP LLP  
TO PERFORM ANNUAL EXTERNAL AUDIT FOR YEAR ENDING 
DECEMBER 31, 2019 

a. EFPR Annual Audit Proposal 

2019-12-011 – 2020 CLARK PATTERSON LEE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
EXTENSION 

a. CPL Proposal 

2019-12-012 – EXTENSION OF BID FOR PICKUP, HAULING, AND DISPOSAL 
OF ALUMINUM-BASED RESIDUALS FROM WATER TREATMENT PLANT 

a. Modern Disposal Offer of Extension 

2019-12-013 – COMPENSATION FOR SAFETY SPECIALIST 

2019-12-014 – EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT WITH BRIAN MAJCHROWICZ 
a. Employment Agreement 

2019-12-015 – CHANGE ORDER FOR WATER TREATMENT PLANT 
CAULKING CONTRACT 

a. Change Order 

2019-12-016 – AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF CLAIM BY RIVERSIDE 
CONDO. ASSN. 

a. Notice of Claim 

2019-12-017 – GRANTING THE STATE OF NEW YORK AUTHORITY  
TO PERFORM AN ADJUSTMENT OF NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD 
FACILITIES AND AGREEMENT TO MAINTAIN FACILITIES ADJUSTED VIA 
THE STATE-LET CONTRACT, PROJECT IDENTIFICATION NO. 5813.59 

a. DOT Cover Letter and Agreement Regarding Military Rd. Manhole 
Elevations 

12. Unfinished Business 

13. New Business & Additional Items for Discussion 

14. Executive Session (if needed) 

15. Adjournment of Meeting 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 005



Regular Session of the 
Niagara Falls Water Board 
November 25, 2019   5:00 PM at 

Michael C. O’Laughlin Municipal Water Plant 

1. Attendance and Preliminary Matters 

Forster_*arrived at 5:30 p.m_ Kimble __P__ Larkin_*arrived at 5:20 p.m._
Leffler__P__ O’Callaghan__P__ 

a. Letters and Communications 

None.  

b. Public Comment (All speakers must register with the Chairperson 
prior to roll call and are limited to three minutes per person – total 
time for all speakers may not exceed one hour)   

Suzana Starks spoke regarding a billing issue at her residential property on 
Independence Ave.  Ms. Starks as been living at this property with her children since 
2006.  Her average quarterly water bill is approximately $138, however, the bill she 
received for her most recent billing cycle was approximately $4,600.00.  When she 
phoned the NFWB, she was advised to call a plumbing service.  After contacting 
Gross Plumbing, they inspected her residence and reported no findings that would 
have resulted in such a substantial water bill; suggested the possibility of a faulty water 
meter.  The NFWB Meter Shop then came out to Ms. Starks’s property and suggested 
there was a possibility of an intermediate leak.  Ms. Sarks stated she submitted an 
adjustment form along with an invoice from Gross Plumbing to the NFWB’s billing 
department. 

Ms. Leffler states she would like a monthly update for all Board members regarding 
any billing issues or other public speakers that come before the Board. 

c. Presentations (None scheduled)

d. Approval of Minutes from October 28, 2019 Meeting 

Motion by Ms. Leffler and seconded by Ms. Kimble to approve. 
Forster__absent__Kimble __Y__ Larkin__absent__Leffler__Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 
Motion carried 3-0 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 006



1 | P a g e

2. From the Executive Director 

Mr. Fama updated the board members on Project 6 – Effluent Disinfection. This 
project is being completed using in-house labor and IDIQ contracts.  At the next 
meeting, there will be a proposal from Mollenberg-Betz, the mechanical contractor, for 
approximately $1.3 million in work. 

3. Superintendent 

Mr. Wright updated the Board on the status of Bollier Ave.  Per City Engineering, a 
request for proposal will be published in the Niagara Gazette next week. 

Mr. O’Callaghan questions why an employee from the outside sewer department was 
called to a residence on 58th St. on Sunday to investigate a water in the basement 
complaint, resulting in overtime. 

Mr. Wright and Mr. Costello explain that this was the procedure that was agreed upon; 
if the problem is not with NFWB’s sewer main, the employee will be a witness in any 
future claim. 

4. Engineering 

Mr. O’Callaghan questioned the status of the sanity sewer system management plan – 
year 12 progress evaluation engineering report.  Mr. Williamson stated that the NFWB 
plans to meet with the DEC before the end of 2019 to review the report. 

5. Director of Administrative Services – Personnel Items 
a. Staff Requested: 

i. Motion to Approve Personnel Actions and Report  
dated November 18, 2019. 

b. Updated Organizational Chart 

Mr. Perry provided an updated organizational chart to the board members and 
explained there was nothing new added to the personnel action report from the 
working session.  

Motion by Ms. Leffler and seconded by Mr. O’Callaghan to approve the personnel 
actions and report. 
Forster__absent__Kimble __N__ Larkin__absent__Leffler__Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 
Motion was not carried 2-1 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 007



2 | P a g e

6. Information Technology (IT) 

Mr. Fama states the implementation of the new GPS systems for the NFWB’s fleet is 
moving along.  Approximately 4-6 units have been installed.  Mr. Fama explained that 
this project is a work in progress. 

Mr. O’Callaghan states he would like the vehicles that are being used daily, to be the 
first vehicles to have GPS units installed.  Specially he would like the Outside 
Sewer/Water Crew to be the first portion of the fleet to have the GPS units installed, 
then the Meter Shop, and then the Maintenance Department.  

Mr. Wright states he will clarify any uncertainties regarding the new GPS system with 
the NFWB’s Enterprise Sales Representative, Terry Eason.   

7. Director of Financial Services  

8. Other Reports 
a. Questions Regarding Monthly O&M Reports (if any) 
b. Safety 

Mr. O’Callaghan states he would like to know the status of the back-up camera on the 
truck that was involved in a minor accident last week. 

9. General Counsel and Secretary 

Mr. O’Callaghan asked whether administration staff are entitled to bereavement leave.  
Mr. Perry stated that they are allowed the same bereavement leave as Tier II hourly 
workers. 

10. From the Chairman 

11. Resolutions 

2019-11-001 – ACCEPTING ENGINEERING PROPOSAL BY GHD FOR WWTP 
PROTECTIVE MEASURES PROJECT PHASE II BIDDING AND 
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

a. GHD Proposal Dated October 4, 2019 
b. Background Information on Project 

Motion by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin to approve  
Forster__absent__Kimble __Y__ Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 
Motion carried 4-0 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 008



3 | P a g e

2019-11-002 – AWARDING BID FOR WWTP PROJECT 4: GRANULATED 
ACTIVATED CARBON AND CARBON FILTER SUPPORT GRAVEL 
REPLACEMENT 

a. Bid Tabulation and Award Recommendation 

Motion by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin to approve  
Forster__absent__Kimble __Y__ Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 
Motion carried 4-0 

2019-11-003 – EXTENDING BID FOR GRANULATED ACTIVE CARBON 
SUPPLY AND REMOVAL 

a. 2018 Bid Award Recommendation and Bid Tabulation 

Motion by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin to approve  
Forster__absent__Kimble __Y__ Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 
Motion carried 4-0 

2019-11-004 – EXTENSION OF PRIMARY TREATMENT POLYMERS BID 
a. 2018 Bid Award Recommendation and Bid Tabulation 

Motion by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin to approve  
Forster__absent__Kimble __Y__ Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 
Motion carried 4-0 

2019-11-005 – EXTENDING BID FOR SLUDGE DEWATERING POLYMER 
a. 2018 Bid Award Recommendation and Bid Tabulation 

Motion by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin to approve  
Forster__absent__Kimble __Y__ Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 
Motion carried 4-0 

2019-11-006 – AUTHORIZING PROCUREMENT OF SLUDGE SCREW FROM 
KAMAN INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES 

a. Kaman, Core Welding, and Frederick Machine Quotes 

Motion by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin to approve  
Forster__absent__Kimble __Y__ Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 
Motion carried 4-0 

2019-11-007 – AUTHORIZING PROCUREMENT OF GRIT SCREW FROM 
KAMAN INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES 

a. Kaman, Core Welding, and Frederick Machine Quotes 

Motion by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin to approve  
Forster__absent__Kimble __Y__ Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 
Motion carried 4-0 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 009



4 | P a g e

2019-11-008 – PURCHASE OF KREBS CYCLONE REPLACEMENT PARTS 
a. Part List, Pricing, and Schematic 

Motion by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin to approve  
Forster__absent__Kimble __Y__ Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 
Motion carried 4-0 

2019-11-009 – PROCEDURE FOR NOTIFYING BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
OF SENIOR STAFF ABSENCES 

Motion by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Leffler to approve  
Forster__absent__Kimble __Y__ Larkin__N__Leffler__Y__ O’Callaghan__N__ 
Motion was not carried 2-2 

2019-11-010 – AUTHORIZING 102nd STREET METER PIT CONSTRUCTION 
COSTS 

a. Wendel Recommendation for 102nd Street Meter Pit Award 

Motion by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin to approve  
Forster__absent__Kimble __Y__ Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 
Motion carried 4-0 

2019-11-011 – AUTHORIZING ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR 102nd STREET 
METER PIT CONSTRUCTION PHASE 

a. Wendel Proposal dated November 14, 2019 

Motion by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin to approve  
Forster__absent__Kimble __Y__ Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 
Motion carried 4-0 

2019-11-012 – AUTHORIZING LEASE OF THREE VEHICLES AND DISPOSAL 
OF FIVE VEHICLES THROUGH ENTERPRISE 

a. Memorandum from Superintendent 
b. Enterprise Estimates for Vehicle Disposals 
c. Enterprise Quotes for Lease of Three 2020 Chevrolet Equinoxes 

(Note: Quote 4375051 Submitted for Two Vehicles) 

Motion by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin to approve  
Forster__Y__Kimble __Y__ Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 
Motion carried 5-0 

2019-11-013 – AUTHORIZING PURCHASE OF STOCK OF FIRE HYDRANTS 

Motion by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin to approve  
Forster__Y__Kimble __Y__ Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 
Motion carried 5-0 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 010



5 | P a g e

2019-11-014 – AWARDING IN PART AND REJECTING IN PART 
COOPERATIVE CHEMICAL BIDS 

1. D. Williamson Analysis of Percent Change 
2. Tally Sheet for Chemical Bids 

Motion by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin to approve  
Forster__Y__Kimble __Y__ Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 
Motion carried 5-0 

12. Unfinished Business 

Mr. Forster requested clarification regarding the current number of leaking fire 
hydrants throughout the city.  He was told at the November work session that there 
were currently no known leaking fire hydrants but was informed there are currently 
13 leaking fire hydrants as of November 25th. 

Mr. Forster would like a column added to the monthly O&M report, indicating the 
current status of the leaking fire hydrants in the city.  Mr. Forster also would like to 
see a plan on how the staff involved plans to address this issue. 

Mr. Wright states he will schedule a meeting with Mr. Fama and Mr. Eagler to address 
the issue and come up with a plan to resolve.  The Board will be emailed regarding the 
plan. 

13. New Business & Additional Items for Discussion 

Ms. Larkin requested information regarding contracts that are renewing for next year, 
including the agreement for grant work. 

Mr. O’Callaghan questioned why more than one employee was paid overtime for the 
root-foaming job, because the contract which states one NFWB employee is to be 
available to the contractor.  He did not see anything in the CBA that states a supervisor 
needs to be present.  

14. Executive Session (if needed) 

Motion by Ms. Larkin and seconded by Ms. Leffler to enter into executive session to 
discuss the hiring or retention of particular individuals.  
Forster__Y__Kimble __Y__ Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 
Motion carried 5-0 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 011



6 | P a g e

15. Adjournment of Meeting 

Motion by Ms. Kimble and seconded by Ms. Larkin to adjourn.  
Forster__Y__Kimble __Y__ Larkin__Y__Leffler__Y__ O’Callaghan__Y__ 
Motion carried 5-0 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 012



I.  PERSONNEL ACTIONS RECOMMEND TO HIRE
Line Item 
Number Position Department/Location Pay Rate or Grade

1.1 Human Resources 
Specialist Administrative Approx. $50,000

II. RECOMMENDED PROMOTION / MOVE / APPOINTMENT 

Line Item 
Number Position Type of labor move Change in pay rate or 

grade

2.1 CMM Post for CMT increase $.32 / hr. avg.

2.2 Plant Attendent Promotion to Crew Leader 
Specialist 

Grade 13B to 14 Avg. 
increase $1.78/ hr. across 

seniority & position

IV. BOARD NOTIFICATION OF OTHER MOVEMENT (CBA BID, MCSB APPOINTMENT, LEGAL STATUS CHANGE)

Name Position & type of 
labor move Department/Location Pay Rate or Grade

V.  OTHER ACTIV

Name Last Day Worked Dept. Return Status

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Niagara Falls Water Board

  Personnel Actions and Report
Monday, December 9, 2019

Personnel Actions Requested of the Board

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Union position will save the organization $6,000 first year 
with the elimination of Deputy & aid NF employment

Post in accordance with CBA replacing individual terminated 
in August impact =0 if there is no backfill it will save $45,000 

annually

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION / AUTHORITY

Approximatly $ 3,702 annually

OTHER PERSONNEL ACTIVITY FOR BOARD NOTIFICATION 

Comments

VI.  PERSONNEL ON LONG TERM LOA

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 013



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2019-12-002 

2020 MEETINGS 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board has, by past practice, approved the schedule 
for the work sessions and the regular meetings by resolution prior to the next year of operation; 
and     

WHEREAS, the Water Board must schedule an annual meeting pursuant to Article V, 
Section 1 of its By-Laws; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the calendar of work sessions, business meetings, and the annual 
meeting that is attached hereto is hereby adopted by the Niagara Falls Water Board for 2020. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 
General Counsel and Secretary 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
No monetary impact 

On December 16, 2019, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [         ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to the Board

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 014



5815 Buffalo Avenue ∙Niagara Falls ∙ New York ∙14304  ∙ 716 283-9770  ∙ FAX 716 283-9748 
www.nfwb.org 

TO: All Interested Parties 

FROM: Niagara Falls Water Board 

RE:  Niagara Falls Water Board Work Session and  
Business Meeting Dates for the Calendar Year 2020 

The Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) has scheduled the dates below for its 
2020 work sessions and the regular business meetings.  Meetings are held at the 
Water Board offices located at 5815 Buffalo Avenue, Niagara Falls, New York, and begin 
at 5:00 p.m.  The regular meeting held March 23, 2020 shall be deemed the 
Annual Meeting pursuant to Article V, Section 1 of the Water Board’s by-laws.  Any 
changes to this schedule or special meetings shall be announced to the public pursuant 
to the Open Meetings Law.   

Work Sessions:  Business Meetings: 

January 13, 2020  January 27, 2020 

February 24, 2020* February 24, 2020* 

March 16, 2020  March 23, 2020  

April 20, 2020  April 27, 2020  

May 11, 2020 May 18, 2020 

June 15, 2020 June 22, 2020 

July 20, 2020 July 27, 2020 

August - recess   August - recess 

September 21, 2020 September 28, 2020 

October 19, 2020  October 26, 2020 

November 16, 2020 November 23, 2020 

December 7, 2020  December 14, 2020 

* Working session followed immediately by business meeting.

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 015



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2019-12-003 

FUNDS FOR MOLLENBERG-BETZ TO FURNISH PROJECT 6  
EQUIPMENT AND MECHANICAL WORK 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) pursuant to 
NYS Department of Environmental Conservation Consent Order R9-20170906-129 agreed to 
implement improvements to its effluent disinfection system (“Project 6”); and 

WHEREAS, in order to complete these improvements in an expeditions and 
cost-effective manner, the Water Board retained AECOM for design and construction 
engineering services and determined to construct the improvements using a combination of its 
in-house forces and using the services of contractors who were awarded previously bid indefinite 
delivery/indefinite quantity contracts; and 

WHEREAS, one component of Project 6 includes the installation of various pumps, 
mixers, sensors, and transmitters, together with associated mechanical work including piping and 
fabrication of cabinets; and 

WHEREAS, Ferguson Electric, pursuant to a pre-bid indefinite delivery/indefinite 
quantity contract, has agreed to perform the required the installation of various pumps, mixers, 
sensors, and transmitters, together with associated mechanical work including piping and 
fabrication of cabinets for a proposed cost of $1,366,000; and 

WHEREAS, the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation and 
Dormitory Authority of the State of New York have authorized the Water Board to use funds 
from the State and Municipal Facilities Program (“SAM”) Phase I – Upgrade and Improve the 
Niagara Falls Waste Water Treatment Plant (Project ID: #15688) grant towards half of the 
Water Board’s costs for Project 6;  

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 016



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board be and is hereby authorized to pay to 
Mollenberg Betz up to $1,366,000 to complete the scope of work related WWTP Project 6, 
Effluent Disinfection, that is set forth in its November 20, 2019 proposal. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
2019 CIP Item No. WWTP-6, WWTP Rehab Phase 4F, Chemical Improvements 

On December 16, 2019, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [         ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to the Board

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 017



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 018



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 019



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 020



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2019-12-004 

FUNDS FOR FERGUSON ELECTRIC TO COMPLETE PROJECT 6  
DEMOLITION, TEMPORARY WIRING, AND UNDERGROUND DUCT BANK WORK 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) pursuant to 
NYS Department of Environmental Conservation Consent Order R9-20170906-129 agreed to 
implement improvements to its effluent disinfection system (“Project 6”); and 

WHEREAS, in order to complete these improvements in an expeditions and 
cost-effective manner, the Water Board retained AECOM for design and construction 
engineering services and determined to construct the improvements using a combination of its 
in-house forces and using the services of contractors who were awarded previously bid indefinite 
delivery/indefinite quantity contracts; and 

WHEREAS, one component of Project 6 requires demolition of existing electrical 
features, temporary wiring, and the fabrication and installation of an underground duct bank; and 

WHEREAS, Ferguson Electric, pursuant to a pre-bid indefinite delivery/indefinite 
quantity contract, has agreed to perform the required demolition, temporary wiring, and 
underground work on a time-and-material basis for an estimated cost of $108,000; and 

WHEREAS, the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation and 
Dormitory Authority of the State of New York have authorized the Water Board to use funds 
from the State and Municipal Facilities Program (“SAM”) Phase I – Upgrade and Improve the 
Niagara Falls Waste Water Treatment Plant (Project ID: #15688) grant towards half of the 
Water Board’s costs for Project 6;  

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 021



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board be and is hereby authorized to pay to 
Ferguson Electric up to $108,000 to complete the scope of work related WWTP Project 6, 
Effluent Disinfection, that is set forth in their October 8, 2019 proposal. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
2019 CIP Item No. WWTP-6, WWTP Rehab Phase 4F, Chemical Improvements 

On December 16, 2019, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [         ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to the Board

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 022



 

                                                                            Ferguson Electric Service Co., Inc. | 321 Ellicott Street, Buffalo, New York 14203 | 716.853.3321 | fax: 716.853.3325 

  

 

 

 

 

 
Service Division 
Your exclusive TEGG® Service provider 

 
o Electrical preventative 

maintenance programs 

 

o 24-hour emergency service 

 

o Troubleshooting and repair 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

October 8, 2019 

 

Niagara Falls Water Board 

5815 Buffalo Ave 

Niagara Falls, NY  14304 

 

Attention:  Mr. Jay Meyers 

 

Re: Effluent Disinfection – Project 6, 

 FES#PL20513 

 

Dear Jay, 

 

We are please to present this budgetary proposal for the demo, temporary wiring, 

and underground duct bank associated with the Effluent Disinfection Project 6, 

drawings E-1 and E-2 as provided by AECOM. 

 

Provide the labor, equipment, and materials to complete our above work scope. 

 

Our budgetary price for the above is ONE HUNDRED EIGHT THOUSAND 

DOLLARS ($108,000.00).   

 

We will preform the work on a time and material basis per the NFWB contract. 

 

Our price is subject to all applicable sales and use taxes unless otherwise directed 

by your order to proceed.  Our price is based on performing the work during 

straight-time hours, 7:00am – 3:30pm, Monday through Friday, excluding holidays. 

 

Notes: 

• We will perform all work strictly according to Article 70E of the NFPA 

dealing with the Arc Flash Protection. 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to work with Niagara Falls Water Board. 

 

We await your written authorization of acceptance so that we may begin work on 

this project in a timely, satisfactory manner. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

FERGUSON ELECTRIC SERVICE CO., INC. 

 
Daniel R. Schultz 

Electrical Services Manager 

 

 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 023



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2019-12-005 

AWARDING BID FOR ANNUAL  
ELECTRICAL PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) was assisted by the City of 
Niagara Falls Purchasing Department in soliciting bids for annual electrical preventative 
maintenance under Bid No. W2019-03; and 

WHEREAS, City of Niagara Falls Purchasing has tabulated the results and highlighted 
the lowest responsible bidder meeting the specifications; and 

WHEREAS, the low bid is from Ferguson Electric Service Company, Inc.; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby awards the electrical 
preventative maintenance bid to Ferguson Electric Service Company, Inc., for the following: 

Year One:   $14,746; 
Year Two (if renewed):  $15,189; 
Year Three (if renewed):  $15,597. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 

On December 16, 2019, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [         ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to the Board

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 024



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 025



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 026



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2019-12-006 

AUTHORIZING GHD CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES FOR  
PROJECT 2: GORGE PUMPING STATION REHABILITATION  

AND OUTFALL 003 REDIRECTION 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) is engaged in multiple 
projects to rehabilitate and improve its Wastewater Treatment Plan, including a project referred 
to as Project 2: Gorge Pumping Station Rehabilitation; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board previously awarded the design and bidding services for 
Project 2 to GHD, as well as additional design and bidding services related to a project to 
redirect Outfall 003 from the Falls Street Tunnel to the Gorge Pump Station; and  

WHEREAS, Project 2 and the Outfall 003 redirection will be ready to advertise for bid 
soon; and 

WHEREAS, CPL, acting as the Water Board’s engineers, recommends that the 
Water Board award to GHD the construction administration and inspection services for Project 2 
and the Outfall 003 redirection as detailed in GHD’s October 4, 2019 proposal; and 

WHEREAS, up to 50% of the cost of the work that is the subject of this resolution will 
be reimbursable under the Water Board’s State and Municipal Facilities Program (“SAM”) 
Grant, Project ID No. 15688, and GHD’s proposal includes the M/WBE participation required 
for grant reimbursement eligibility;  

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 027



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board be and is hereby authorized to pay to 
GHD up to $216,700 for construction-phase services for Project 2: Gorge Pumping Station 
Rehabilitation and the Outfall 003 Redirection, as outlined in GHD’s October 4, 2019 proposal. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
2019 CIP Item No. WWTP 2  

On October 28, 2019, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a 
vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to the Board

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 028



 
 
 
 

GHD 
285 Delaware Avenue Suite 500 Buffalo New York 14202 USA 
T 716 856 2142  F 716 856 2160  W www.ghd.com 

October 4, 2019 Reference No. 11194110 
 
 
Patrick Fama, Executive Director 
Niagara Falls Water Board 
5815 Buffalo Avenue 
Niagara Falls, New York 14304 
 
Dear Mr. Fama: 
 
Re: Project 2 – Gorge Pumping Station Rehabilitation 

Construction Phase Services – Revised Amendment Proposal 

GHD is pleased to submit our updated proposal for construction phase services related to the above 
referenced project at the Gorge Pump Station (GPS).  GHD is currently under contract with the Niagara 
Falls Water Board (NFWB) to provide design services, New York State Environmental Facilities 
Corporation (NYSEFC) reporting and bidding assistance for this project, in accordance with our 
Agreement dated March 25, 2019. This Agreement includes GHD’s proposal dated September 17, 2018, 
which outlines the scope of services currently authorized by the NFWB. Our September 17, 2018 proposal 
also includes a scope and fee for construction phase services, which have not been authorized. 

The NFWB’s program manager (CPL) has requested this updated proposal for construction phase 
services in order to coordinate schedules with the other construction projects that will be occurring at the 
wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) under this program.  This proposal hereby amends GHD’s scope of 
services and fees that were outlined in our September 17, 2018 proposal. 

This proposal has been revised based on feedback from the NFWB and CPL.  Please disregard our 
proposal letter for these services dated August 7, 2019.  Please note that these services will also be 
performed for the project entitled “Redirect Outfall 003 from the Falls Street Tunnel to the Gorge Pump 
Station,” which was awarded to GHD at the September 23, 2019 NFWB board meeting. The GPS 
Rehabilitation and Redirection of Outfall 003 are now combined into this one single project.   

1. Scope of Services 

GHD proposes to complete the following tasks during construction of the GPS project: 

Task 4 – Construction Administration 

GHD will provide construction administration services from the Notice to Proceed until final acceptance of 
the Work, as limited by the anticipated length of contract(s). For Construction Administration, we will 
provide the following services: 

1. Review and approval of payment applications. 

2. Maintain a Request for Information (RFI), Field Order and Change Order Log. 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 029

http://www.ghd.com/


 
 
 

11194110Fama-2 2 

3. Respond to RFIs submitted by the Contractor(s). 

4. Maintain a shop drawing log. 

5. Review and take action (Approve, Reject, Approved as Corrected) on shop drawings required for 
the construction contracts. 

6. Review and take action (Approve, Reject, Approved as Corrected) on submitted schedule of values 
and schedules. 

7. Review, develop details for, and negotiate change order requests. 

8. Conduct and attend construction progress meetings on site with the Contractors and NFWB staff to 
maintain the projected project schedule and open communication with WWTP personnel. GHD will 
prepare agendas and meeting minutes and distribute meeting minutes. 

9. Coordinate, administer and support the work. 

10. Host a password protected FTP website for electronic access to all construction related 
correspondence (submittals, RFI, schedules, meeting minutes, pay requests, etc.) by the NFWB, 
GHD and contractors. 

11. Prepare record drawings of the completed work. We will submit one hardcopy set of full-size 
drawings along with electronic CAD files and PDFs of all drawings.  

12. Assemble the contractor furnished manufacturers’ equipment O&M information into binders and 
submit this information for use by the NFWB as hardcopies and PDFs. 

Task 5 – Construction Inspection 

GHD will provide construction inspection services. Construction inspection services will include: 

1. Conduct onsite inspections of Work in progress to determine whether the Work is proceeding in 
general compliance with the Contract Documents. 

2. Provide the services of a qualified and experienced construction inspector during periods of active 
construction. We have budgeted for 7 months (30 weeks) at 45 hours per week. 

3. Report whenever inspector believes that any Work is unsatisfactory, faulty or defective, or does not 
conform to the Contract Documents, has been damaged, or does not meet the requirements of any 
inspection, test or approval required to be made. 

4. Verify that tests, equipment and systems start-ups, and operating and maintenance training are 
conducted in the presence of appropriate personnel, and that Contractor maintains adequate 
records thereof. Observe, record and report to NFWB appropriate details relative to the test 
procedures and start-ups. 

5. Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having jurisdiction over the 
Project; record the results of these inspections and report to NFWB. 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 030



 
 
 

11194110Fama-2 3 

6. Maintain at the job site orderly files for correspondence, reports of job conferences, Shop Drawings 
and samples, reproductions of original Contract Documents including Addenda, Change Orders, 
Field Orders, additional Drawings issued subsequent to the execution of the Construction Contract, 
clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents, and progress reports. 

7. Prepare daily reports, diary or log book, recording Contractors’ hours on the job site, weather 
conditions, data relative to questions concerning Change Orders or changed conditions, list of job 
site visitors, daily activities, decisions, general observations, and specific, more detailed 
observations as in the case of test procedures. 

8. Record names, addresses and telephone numbers of all Contractors, subcontractors and major 
suppliers of materials and equipment. 

2. Schedule 

Our proposed schedule to complete this project is shown on Figure 1 (attached). The construction 
duration will be largely set by the time required to receive and install the new pumps and motors. Pump 
manufacturers have indicated that supplying new pumps and motors will require 6 weeks for development 
of shop drawings and 24 weeks for fabrication of the equipment. Assuming time to review and make one 
round of revisions to the shop drawings, we anticipate it will take approximately 9 months to fabricate and 
receive the first pump. Two pumps will need to remain in service throughout construction; therefore, the 
replacements will be performed one at a time. We estimate installing all three new pumps will require 
5 months to complete. This includes 4 weeks for each pump install, 2 weeks for startup and testing of 
each pump, and 4 weeks to complete final punch list items. Therefore, we estimate that construction will 
require a total of 14 months to complete after issuing the Notice to Proceed. We estimate that contractors 
will be mobilized and onsite for approximately 7-months of active construction duration. 

3. MWBE/SDVOB Participation 

GHD will retain the services of Popli Design Group, a Minority-Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), for 
structural and electrical construction administration services, and Patriot Design & Consulting, a Service 
Disabled Veteran Owned Business (SDVOB), for HVAC construction administration services, consistent 
with our current design services utilization plan as approved by the NFWB. We will also hire a qualified 
inspector to perform a portion of Task 5 – Construction Inspection, and meet the balance of the 30 percent 
(Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprise (MWBE) goals of the project.  

  

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 031



 
 
 

11194110Fama-2 4 

4. Fee 

GHD proposes to complete the scope of services outlined above for a total not-to-exceed fee of $216,700 
as detailed below.  

Task Description Fee 
Task 4 Construction Administration $  85,500 
Task 5 Construction Inspection $131,300 
 Total $216,700 

GHD will invoice Tasks 4 and 5 on an hourly basis not to exceed the above total, and direct expenses will 
be invoiced at cost plus 5 percent.  We will hold our hourly rates to be consistent with our current 
Agreement.  Invoices shall be due within 30 days from receipt. 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal. If you have any questions or require additional 
information, please do not hesitate to call. 

Sincerely, 

GHD 

 
Casey W. Cowan, PE 
Project Manager 

CWC/las/2 

Attachment 

cc: Douglas Williamson, PE – NFWB 
Theodore E. Donner, PE – CPL 
Robert P. Lannon Jr, PE – GHD 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 032



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 Project Kick-off Meeting 0 days Tue 6/4/19 Tue 6/4/19

2 Preliminary Design Report 3 mos Wed 6/5/19 Fri 8/30/19

3 Preliminary Design Report Submittal 0 days Fri 8/30/19 Fri 8/30/19

4 Client Review and Feedback 2 wks Mon 9/2/19 Fri 9/13/19

5 Detailed Design Plans and Specs 5 wks Mon 9/23/19 Fri 10/25/19

6 60% Submittal 0 days Mon 10/28/19 Mon 10/28/19

7 Client Review and Feedback 2 wks Tue 10/29/19 Mon 11/11/19

8 Detailed Design Plans and Specs 2 wks Tue 11/12/19 Mon 11/25/19

9 90% Submittal 0 days Mon 11/25/19 Mon 11/25/19

10 Client Review and Feedback 2 wks Tue 11/26/19 Mon 12/9/19

11 Develop Final Plans and Specs for Bid 9 days Tue 12/10/19 Fri 12/20/19

12 Advertise for Bids 0 days Fri 12/20/19 Fri 12/20/19

13 Bid phase 7 wks Mon 12/23/19 Fri 2/7/20

14 Open bids 0 days Fri 2/7/20 Fri 2/7/20

15 Contract Award 0 days Mon 2/24/20 Mon 2/24/20

16 Execute Contracts 1 mon Fri 3/6/20 Thu 4/2/20

17 Notice to Proceed 0 days Thu 4/2/20 Thu 4/2/20

18 Construction Period 14 mos Fri 4/3/20 Thu 6/10/21

19 Pump Shop Drawings/Fabrication 7 mons Fri 4/3/20 Thu 10/15/20

20 Active Onsite Construction 7 mons Fri 10/16/20 Thu 4/29/21

21 Record Drawings/O&M Manuals 30 days Fri 4/30/21 Thu 6/10/21

6/4

8/30

10/28

11/25

12/20

2/7

2/24

4/2

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug
2019 2020 2021

Task Milestone

Niagara Falls Water Board
Project 2 - Gorge Pumping Station Rehabilitation

Proposed Project Schedule

Last Revised Wed 8/7/19

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 033



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2019-12-007 

AWARDING BID FOR MONTHLY MAINTENANCE OF ELEVATORS 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) was assisted by the City of 
Niagara Falls Purchasing Department in soliciting in conjunction with the City bids for the 
maintenance of elevators and dumbwaiters under Bid No. 2019-27; and 

WHEREAS, City of Niagara Falls Purchasing has tabulated the results and highlighted 
the lowest responsible bidder meeting the specifications; and 

WHEREAS, the low bid is from DCB Elevator Company, Inc.; and 

WHEREAS, the total monthly bid price for monthly maintenance of the Water Board’s 
three elevators is $630, with emergency call back service at $325 per hour; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby awards to DCB Elevator 
Company, Inc., the bid for monthly maintenance of elevators at $630 per month and emergency 
call back service at $325 per hour; and 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that this award authorizes 2020 service, as well as four 
additional one-year renewals, unless cancelled by either party.  

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 

On December 16, 2019, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [         ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to the Board

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 034



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 035



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 036



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 037



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 038



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2019-12-008 

AUTHORIZING PRO RATA SETTLEMENT OF CLAIM  
FOR HYDRANT DAMAGE 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) seeks to recover from 
responsible parties the costs it incurs as a result of tortious damage to its facilities; and 

WHEREAS, on or about February 27, 2019 a vehicle operated by Shawn Petrishin and 
insured by Progressive Advanced Insurance Company damaged a Water Board fire hydrant at 
7th and Niagara Streets; and 

WHEREAS, the cost to the Water Board to repair the hydrant using a “hydrant kit” 
(including labor, materials, and a vehicle charge) was $865.72; and 

WHEREAS, the February 27, 2019 incident also resulted in additional property damage 
to other parties; and 

WHEREAS, the available insurance limits under the Progressive insurance policy are 
$10,000; and 

WHEREAS, the available insurance is insufficient to cover all damages, and the 
Water Board’s pro rata share of the insurance is $504.54; and 

WHEREAS, Progressive and Mr. Petrishin seek to settle this matter for a payment of 
$504.54 in exchange for a general release from the Water Board; and 

WHEREAS, General Counsel recommends accepting this settlement because of the cost 
and uncertainty of litigation to recover the full amount of the Water Board’s damages; 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 039



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby authorizes General Counsel to 
execute a release in favor of Shawn Petrishin and Progressive Advanced Insurance Company in 
exchange for a payment of $504.54 as settlement in full of the Water Board’s claim for damages 
resulting from the February 27, 2019 damage to its fire hydrant at 7th and Niagara Streets. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
General Counsel 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
Not applicable 

On December 16, 2019, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [         ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to the Board

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 040



(&h) &f - PASSPORT&b&D, &T                           December 03, 2019, 13:17:42

 CMSD0627 /CMSM0627             P A C M A N                 DEC 03 19 - 14:17   
 OPID: A095121             AGY CLAIM POL COVERAGE           TERMID: ?0I1        
 INSD: PETRISHIN, SHAWN D                          CVQ      POL: 927096023-0    
 DOL : FEB 27 19  NY-ADWPCS-ADM-   CLM: 194213184  OPEN     REP: J WEAVER       
 EFF DT: JAN 29 19   EXPR DT: JUL 29 19    CO: 48   *        ST* NY             
 VEHICLE YR: 05  MAKE* CHEVROLET  MODEL: SILVERADO C1 VIN: 1GCEK14X95Z300037    
                                                                                
    LN/COV/LIM  COVERAGE DESC         LIMITS    /    COMMENTS                   
     190305      UIM             $25,000 EACH PERSON-$50,000 EACH ACCIDENT      
                                 SUPPLEMENTAL UNINSURED MOTORIST                
     191905      RBI             $25,000 EACH PERSON-$50,000 EACH ACCIDENT      
                                                                                
     198905      UM              $25,000 EACH PERSON-$50,000 EACH ACCIDENT      
                                                                                
     200102      PD              $10,000 EACH ACCIDENT NO DEDUCTIBLE            
                                                                                
     290131      PIP             $50,000 EACH PERSON NO DEDUCTIBLE              
                                                                                
     490705      SPOUSE BI       $25,000 EACH PERSON-$50,000 EACH ACCIDENT      
                                                                                
                                                                                
                                                                                
DC912747 ONLY PAGE                                                             *
 COMMAND: ATCHMT    F10=CLMPOLI F11=PRODSEL                                     

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 041

a095121
Highlight

a095121
Highlight



PRO-RATA CALCULATION 
****************************** 
AMOUNT OF POLICY LIMIT $10,000.00 
TOTAL DAMAGES $17,158.64 
****************************** 
-PD 2 SPARTAN 
DEMAND 1 AMOUNT $16,292.92 
DEMAND 1: % OF TOTAL DAMAGES 95.0% 
DEMAND 1: PRO-RATA PAYMENT  $9,495.46 
*************************** 
-PD 3 NIAGRA FALLS 
DEMAND 2 AMOUNT $865.72 
DEMAND 2: % OF TOTAL DAMAGES 5.0% 
DEMAND 2: PRO-RATA PAYMENT  $504.54

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 042



FULL RELEASE OF ALL PROPERTY DAMAGE CLAIMS 
 

R NY 1000 01/2012 
 

Claim Number: 19-4213184 
 
 
KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS, that I (we), Niagara Falls Water Board, for and in consideration of the sum of  five hundred 
four and 54/100 Dollars ($504.54), the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, does (do) hereby for myself 
(ourselves), and for my (our) heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns and any and all other persons, firms, employers, 
corporations, associations, or partnerships release, acquit and forever discharge Progressive Advanced Insurance Company and 
Shawn Petrishin any and all other persons, firms, employers, corporations, associates or partnerships who are or might be liable of 
any and all claims, actions, causes of actions, demands, rights, damages and costs, that pertain to property damage, including rental, 
resulting from an automobile accident which occurred on or about February 27, 2019 at or near Niagara Falls, NY.  
 
It is understood and agreed that this settlement is in full compromise of a doubtful and disputed claim as to both questions of liability 
and as to the nature and extent of the property damages, and that neither this release, nor the payment pursuant thereto, shall be 
construed as an admission of liability, such being denied.  
 
It is further understood and agreed that the undersigned relies wholly upon the undersigned’s judgment, belief, and knowledge of the 
nature, extent, effect, and duration of said property damages and liability, and therefore this release is made without reliance upon any 
statement or representation of the party or parties hereby released or their representatives.  
 
THE UNDERSIGNED HAS (HAVE) READ THE FOREGOING RELEASE AND FULLY UNDERSTAND(S) IT.  
 
 
_____________________________________________   ____________________________________________ 
Signature     Date    Witness Signature    Date 
 
 
_____________________________________________   ____________________________________________ 
Signature     Date    Witness Signature    Date 
 
 
 
On this _______ day of ______________, _______, before me personally appeared ________________________________________ 
to me known to be the person(s) who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged that ______________________________ 
____________________ executed the same as  his/her free act and deed. 
 
My commission expires: ______________________   
 
 
______________________________________ 
Notary Public Signature/Seal 
  
 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 043



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2019-12-009 

AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF CLAIM BY HEATHER DOBSON 

WHEREAS, on November 15, 2019, Claimant, Heather M. Dobson, filed a Notice of 
Claim for damage to the rear end of a 2006 Ford Five Hundred sedan owned by 
Danny R. Dobson resulting from a parking-lot collision with a Water Board truck; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board desires to settle the claim in order to buy its peace and 
avoid litigation;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board be and is hereby authorized to pay the 
sum of $1,230.85 to Heather M. Dobson and Danny R. Dobson as settlement in full of the Notice 
of Claim filed on November 15, 2019, in exchange for a General Release. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
General Counsel 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
FA.1930.0000.0449.599 

On December 16, 2019, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [         ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to the Board

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 044



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 045



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 046



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 047



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 048



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 049



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 050



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 051



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 052



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 053



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 054



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 055



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 056



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 057



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 058



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 059



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 060



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 061



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2019-12-010 

EXERCISING THIRD YEAR OPTION FOR EFPR GROUP LLP  
TO PERFORM ANNUAL EXTERNAL AUDIT  

FOR YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2019 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board requires annual external audit services; and 

WHEREAS, early in 2018 the Water Board issued a request for proposals for annual 
audit services; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board accepted the February 13, 2018 proposal of EFPR Group 
LLP (“EFPR”), pursuant to which EFPR performed the Water Board’s annual audit for the year 
ending December 31, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, EFPR’s proposal dated February 13, 2018 provided for two option years for 
EFPR to perform the Water Board’s annual external audits for the years ending 
December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board exercised its option to have EFPR perform an external 
audit for the year ending December 31, 2018, and now desires to exercise its option to have 
EFPR perform an external audit for the year ending December 31, 2019; 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 062



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Water Board’s Director of Financial Services hereby is authorized 
to enter into an agreement with EFPR Group LLP to perform annual audit services for the year 
ending December 31, 2019 at a total cost not to exceed $20,000. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Director of Financial Services 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 
FGB Budget Line- Audit 

On December 16, 2019, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 063



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 064



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 065



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 066



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 067



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 068



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 069



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 070



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 071



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 072



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 073



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 074



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 075



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 076



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 077



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 078



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 079



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 080



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2019-12-011 

2020 CLARK PATTERSON LEE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES EXTENSION 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board is engaged in various ongoing projects 
requiring engineering and related professional services for which it does not have sufficient 
internal staff or requires an outside engineering firm; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board previously entered into an agreement with Clark Patterson 
Lee (“CPL”) to provide consulting engineering and other professional services; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board will continue to need the services provided by CPL 
in 2020; and 

WHEREAS, in December 2018, the Water Board approved CPL’s proposal for 2019 
services, which set forth estimated costs for various tasks and proposed a 2019 not-to-exceed fee 
of $835,000; and 

WHEREAS, approximately $320,000 of the $835,000 in funds authorized for 2019 
services remains unspent; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board desires to authorize the expenditure of the remainder of 
the funds authorized in 2019 during 2020 in order to continue funding ongoing work; 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 081



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that on behalf of the Niagara Falls Water Board, the Executive Director is 
hereby authorized to enter into an extension of the professional services agreement with 
Clark Patterson Lee on a time-and-material basis, and the Water Board authorizes the 
expenditure in 2020 of the portion of the $835,000 in funds allocated for CPL’s 2019 services 
that has not been consumed. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 

On December 16, 2019, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 082



2
6

 M
is

si
ss

ip
p

i S
tr

ee
t,

 S
u

it
e 

30
0

  I
 B

u
ff

al
o

, N
Y

 1
4

2
0

3 
I  

71
6

.8
52

.2
10

0
  I

cl
a

rk
p

a
tt

e
rs

o
n

le
e

.c
o

m

December 10, 2019 

Chairman Dan O’Callaghan 
Niagara Falls Water Board 
5815 Buffalo Avenue 
Niagara Falls, NY 14304 

Dear Chairman O’Callaghan: 

We have appreciated the opportunity to work with you over this couple of years. As you are aware, we 
continue to be involved in the planning and development of several projects and initiatives. To date, we 
have provided you with a not-to-exceed fee for the past two years, with services provided on an as-needed 
basis.  The specific services and proper mix of personnel has been determined based on a request for 
assistance, and we have provided periodic accounting of the services rendered, and will bill on a monthly 
basis. There may be periods of time where no assistance by our staff is required. We intend for this next 
year to be in the same format. 

Our current term expires at the end of 2019.  We have enough fee left in our budget to spend in 2020; we 
are not requesting any extra fee at this time.  If we expend the fee that we currently have, we will request 
additional fees at that time.  We have approximately $320,000 remaining on the total of $835,000 from 
our 2019 agreement. 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit our qualifications. I am deeply proud of our ability to provide 
you with quality service at a fair rate. This is what we do, and we do it well. If you have any questions or 
require any additional information, please feel free to contact me via email at rhenry@clarkpatterson.com
or by phone at 716.852.2100, extension 1048. 

Very truly yours, 
Clark Patterson Lee 

Richard B. Henry III, P.E. 
Senior Vice President 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 083



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2019-12-012 

EXTENSION OF BID FOR PICKUP, HAULING, AND DISPOSAL OF  
ALUMINUM-BASED RESIDUALS FROM WATER TREATMENT PLANT 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) water treatment plant 
(“WTP”) has outdoor sludge beds where it mixes non-toxic chemical coagulants into its raw 
water in order to settle out trace contaminants in the water prior to that water being further 
treated inside the WTP; and 

WHEREAS, from time to time the resulting residuals, commonly known as alum or 
aluminum sludge, accumulate to the point where they must be removed from the outdoor sludge 
beds and disposed of; and 

WHEREAS, an invitation to bid for project no. 2018004, Pickup, Hauling, and Disposal 
of Aluminum-Based Residuals for the period from December 12, 2018 to December 14, 2019 
was issued on behalf of the Water Board by Clark Patterson Lee engineers; and 

WHEREAS, one bid was received from Modern Disposal Services on 
November 20, 2018, with a total base bid of $165,824; and  

WHEREAS, the actual cost of the service in any given period will depend on the total 
quantity of materials actually removed; and 

WHEREAS, the bid provides for optional one-year renewals, and Modern has advised 
that it is willing to enter a contract extension through December 15, 2020; 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 084



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT 

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby authorizes an extension of the 
contract with Modern Disposal Services, Inc., for Pickup, Hauling, and Disposal of 
Aluminum-Based Residuals from the water treatment plant through December 15, 2020. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 

On December 16, 2019, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 085



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 086



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2019-12-013 

COMPENSATION FOR SAFETY SPECIALIST 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board has an employment agreement with 
Gina Senia to serve as its Safety Specialist; and  

WHEREAS, this agreement does not provide for cost of living or other annual increases; 
and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Senia performs additional duties beyond those traditionally assigned to 
the Safety Specialist; and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Senia has not received an increase in annual salary since 
December 2017 and currently is paid an annual salary of $67,958.80; and 

WHEREAS, a 3% increase in Ms. Senia’s salary will result in an annual salary of 
$69,997.56; 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 087



Page 2 of 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board hereby authorizes an increase in the 
annual salary for Gina Senia, Safety Specialist, to $69,997.56, effective January 1, 2020, all 
other terms of the employment agreement to remain unchanged. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Director of Administrative Services 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 

On December 16, 2019, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 088



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2019-12-014 

EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT WITH BRIAN MAJCHROWICZ 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) desires to enter into an 
employment agreement with Brian Majchrowicz for the position of Deputy Director of 
Financial Services; and  

WHEREAS, entering into an employment agreement with Mr. Majchrowicz that 
contains mutual covenants and fixed and predictable terms will be mutually beneficial to the 
parties and in the best interests of the Water Board; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that on behalf of the Niagara Falls Water Board, its Chairperson execute 
the Employment Agreement between the Niagara Falls Water Board and Brian Majchrowicz 
with an effective date of January 1, 2020. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Director of Financial Services 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 

On December 16, 2019, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 089



20191211 Page 1 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
Deputy Director of Financial Services 

EFFECTIVE DATE:

As of January 1, 2020 (the “Effective Date”). 

PARTIES:      

This Employment Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made as of the Effective Date by and 
between Niagara Falls Water Board, 5815 Buffalo Avenue, Niagara Falls, New York (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Water Board”) and Brian Majchrowicz,  
New York 14227 (hereinafter referred to as the “Employee”). 

PURPOSE:

The Water Board desires to employ the Employee as Deputy Director of 
Financial Services, and Employee desires to accept such employment with the Water Board, all 
in accordance with the terms and conditions as hereinafter set forth. 

CONSIDERATION:

In consideration of the foregoing purpose, the mutual covenants and promises hereinafter 
set forth and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy, and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto covenant, promise, and agree as follows: 

PROMISES:

1. Nature of Position and Duties.  The Water Board shall employ Employee as 
Deputy Director of Financial Services, his duties in that capacity to be such as may be 
reasonably determined by the Water Board from time to time and as usually pertain to such 
position.  During the Term (as defined herein below) of this Agreement, the Employee shall 
devote his best efforts to the interests of the Water Board and shall perform services on behalf of 
the Water Board as may be reasonably determined by the Water Board. The Employee shall 
report to the Director of Financial Services.  The Employee shall devote his full business time 
and energy to the business of the Water Board. 

2. Compensation.  As his compensation for services to the Water Board during the 
Term of this Agreement, in whatever capacity rendered, the Employee shall be paid an annual 
salary of $71,250, payable consistent with the Water Board’s general practice for exempt 
employees and the Water Board shall deduct or withhold from such payments, and from all other 
payments made to the Deputy Director of Financial Services pursuant to this Agreement, all 
amounts which may be required to be deducted or withheld under any applicable law now in 
effect or which may become effective during the term of this Agreement (including but not 
limited to Social Security contributions and income tax withholdings).  Employee also agrees 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 090



20191211 Page 2 

that the Water Board may withhold or deduct such additional sums as may be required pursuant 
to Water Board policy or pursuant to his agreement. 

Employee shall receive raises consistent with the following schedule during the 
initial Term of this Agreement: 

June 1, 2021: 2% 

Should this contract renew for additional one-year terms pursuant to paragraph 4, below, 
employee will receive further raises as follows: 

June 1, 2022: 1.5% 
June 1, 2023: 2% 

Nothing in this paragraph is a promise or guarantee that this employment contract will be 
renewed for any additional term. 

3. Benefits.  The Water Board will provide the Employee with the health insurance, 
paid sick leave, and paid holiday benefits that it provides to hourly employees hired after 
December 31, 2007, commonly referred to as “Tier II” employees, plus 15 days of vacation per 
year.  Employee’s paid leave shall be subject to the rules regarding carryover and cash value 
payments for accumulated leave that pertain to Tier II employees.  Employee understands and 
agrees that his health insurance benefits may change or be reduced in the future if the benefits for 
Tier II employees are altered.   

4. Term.  Unless sooner terminated as provided for elsewhere in this Agreement, the 
term of this Agreement shall commence upon the Effective Date first written above and shall 
expire at the close of business on December 31, 2021 (the “Term”).  Upon its expiration on 
December 31, 2021, this agreement shall automatically renew for a term of one (1) year on the 
same terms in effect on December 31, 2021, unless either party notifies the other, in accordance 
with Paragraph 15 below, no later than sixty (60) calendar days before the expiration date, of its 
intent not to renew this Agreement upon its expiration.  This Agreement shall continue to renew 
thereafter for terms of one (1) year until such notice is provided.   

5. Termination.  The Employee’s position with the Water Board and this Agreement 
shall terminate upon the occurrence of any of the following: (i) the mutual written agreement of 
the Water Board and the Employee; (ii) the death of the Employee; (iii) the disability of the 
Employee; (iv) the Employee giving 90 days’ advance written notice to the Water Board; (v) the 
Employee’s discharge for “cause” under Paragraph 6; (vi) Employee’s failure to meet the 
required minimum qualifications for the position as set forth on the job description attached 
hereto as Appendix A; or (vii) determination by the applicable Department of Civil Service that 
the employee cannot retain his position.  In the event of a determination by Civil Service that the 
employee cannot retain his position, termination shall become effective in accordance with the 
New York Civil Service Commission under Title Four of the Official Compilation of Codes, 
Rules and Regulations of the State of New York.  For purposes hereof, disability shall mean a 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 091



20191211 Page 3 

mental or physical condition which renders the Employee unable to perform his duties hereunder 
for either: (i) a period in excess of 45 consecutive days; or (ii) for 90 days within any 300-day 
period following the use of all accrued time.  In the event this Agreement is terminated in 
accordance with this paragraph for any reason other than for cause, the Water Board shall pay 
the Employee or his personal representative, as the case may be:  (i) his salary through and 
including the termination date; and (ii) any accrued and unpaid paid leave in accordance with 
Paragraph 3, and the Water Board shall have no further obligation or liability to the Employee, or 
his personal representative, hereunder.   

6. Discharge for Cause.  During the Term hereof, the Water Board may discharge 
the Employee for cause, in which event this Agreement shall be terminated immediately.  
“Cause” shall include, but not be limited to, facts which permit a reasonable conclusion that the 
Employee has: (i) failed to pursue and perform on a full-time basis his duties hereunder; 
(ii) engaged in the illegal use of drugs or other controlled substances; (iii) engaged in the habitual 
and excessive use of alcohol so as to impair the performance of his duties hereunder; 
(iv) materially breached his obligations hereunder; (v) committed acts that support the reasonable 
conclusion, whether or not Employee actually has been convicted, that Employee has committed 
a felony under the laws of the United States of America or the State of New York or a crime 
involving moral turpitude including but not limited to conduct that is considered contrary to 
community standards of justice, honesty or good morals; (vi) engaged in dishonesty, willful 
misfeasance, or willful malfeasance; (vii) repeatedly failed to perform the duties assigned to him; 
(viii) engaged in fighting with (other than in self-defense), threatened or attempted bodily harm 
to, or harassed, sexually or otherwise, any employee, director, agent, customer, or vendor of the 
Water Board; (ix) engaged in illegal or unethical business practices, including but not limited to 
fraud, misappropriation, or embezzlement, or violation of the Water Board’s Code of Conduct or 
ethics rules of the Joint Commission on Public Ethics or any other body which promulgates 
ethics rules or rules of conduct that are binding on Employee; (x) made public statements or 
engaged in public conduct that undermines or injures the mission or operation of the 
Water Board; (xi) engaged in insubordination, either through failing and refusing to comply with 
a lawful directive issued by Employee’s supervisor or a majority vote of the Water Board in an 
open meeting, by failing to comply with Water Board employee policies and procedures, or by 
failing to comply with a lawful directive of any governmental agency with jurisdiction over the 
Water Board; or (xii) voluntarily resigned without providing to the Water Board the notice 
required by this Agreement.  In the event the Employee’s employment is terminated for cause, 
the Water Board shall pay the Employee:  (i) his salary through and including the termination 
date; and (ii) all accrued and unused paid leave as provided in Paragraph 3, and the Water Board 
shall have no further obligation or liability to the Employee hereunder.  

7. Confidentiality and Return of Property.    

(A) The Employee recognizes and acknowledges that during the term of the 
Employee’s service as Deputy Director of Financial Services for the Water Board, the Employee 
will have access to and become familiar with certain confidential information, privileged 
information, specialized knowledge, and/or trade secrets which belong to the Water Board, 
including, but not limited to, information regarding: Water Board legal affairs, the operation of 
the Water Board, personnel information, costs, pricing, estimates, programs, forecasts, 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 092



20191211 Page 4 

negotiating positions, strategic plans, technical information, processes, methods, techniques, 
financial information, bid or procurement information, consultant reports, and any other 
information not generally known to the public, all of which are regularly used in the operation of 
the Water Board’s business and all of which the Employee acknowledges have been acquired, 
learned, and developed by the Water Board only through the expenditure of substantial sums of 
money, time, and/or effort, which are not readily ascertainable, and are discoverable only with 
substantial effort, and are the confidential and exclusive property of the Water Board (hereinafter 
the “Confidential Information”).  The Employee shall not, during and after the term of his 
employment with the Water Board, disclose, directly or indirectly, or use all or any part of the 
Confidential Information of the Water Board to any person, firm, corporation, association, or 
other entity for any reason or purpose, except as required in the course of his employment with 
the Water Board. 

(B) All files, records, papers, memoranda, customer lists, procurement information, 
personnel records, and documents relating to the business of the Water Board, whether prepared 
by the Water Board, the Employee, or otherwise, coming into the Employee’s possession, shall 
remain the exclusive property of the Water Board.  All of the Water Board’s records or copies 
thereof, shall not be removed from the Water Board’s offices and disclosed to any unauthorized 
third party (including electronically) without the prior written consent of the Water Board.   

(C) The Employee hereby stipulates and agrees that an actual or threatened breach by 
Employee of this Confidentiality Agreement will result in irreparable damage and injury to the 
Water Board, for which no money damages could adequately compensate it.  Thus, if the 
Employee actually breaches, or threatens a breach of, this Confidentiality Agreement, in addition 
to all other remedies to which the Water Board may be entitled, the Employee agrees that the 
Water Board shall be entitled to an injunction or injunctions to prevent breaches of this 
Agreement, without necessity for posting any bond, in addition to any other remedy at law or 
equity.  Such injunction or injunctions may be issued by any court of competent jurisdiction, to 
enjoin and restrain the Employee and each and every person, firm, association, or corporation, 
concerned or acting in concert with the Employee, from the continuance of such breach, or 
threatened breach.  The Employee waives any claim or defense that an adequate remedy at law 
exists for any such breach.  The obligations of the Employee pursuant to this Confidentiality 
Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

(D) On termination of this Agreement, regardless of how termination is effected, or 
whenever requested by the Water Board, Employee shall immediately return to the Water Board 
all of the Water Board’s property, including without limitation all electronic devices, keys and 
copies of keys, access cards, and ID badges, used by Employee in rendering services under this 
Agreement or otherwise, that is in Employee’s possession or under his control.  Furthermore, 
upon termination or discontinuance of the Employee’s employment as Deputy Director of 
Financial Services for the Water Board, the Employee will return to the Water Board all files, 
records, papers, memoranda, customer lists, procurement information, and documents relating to 
the business or Confidential Information of the Water Board to which he gained access as a 
result of his employment which the Employee acknowledges are the sole and exclusive property 
of the Water Board. 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 093



20191211 Page 5 

8.   Conflicts.  The Employee represents that he is not under any legal or contractual 
obligation that would conflict in any manner with his duties and obligations as Deputy Director 
of Financial Services and that the execution and performance of this Agreement by the Employee 
shall not breach any agreement to which he is a party or by which he is bound.     

9. Retirement Contributions.  The Water Board shall make such contributions to the 
New York State Retirement System (the “Retirement System”) for the Employee’s behalf as may 
be required by the Retirement System. 

10. Employee Handbook and Random Drug Testing.  Employee agrees to abide by 
such employee policies and procedures as are promulgated by the Water Board, and such 
policies as modified during the course of his employment.  Such policies and procedures include, 
but are not limited to, those in any employee handbook that is from time to time published, 
including the Water Board’s random drug testing policy. 

11. Breach and Mitigation.  The Employee agrees that in the event of termination of 
his employment with the Water Board by reason of breach by the Water Board, the Employee 
will attempt, and use his best efforts, to seek employment to mitigate the damages he would 
sustain by reason of the Water Board’s breach of its obligations hereunder.  If the Water Board is 
determined to have breached this Agreement the Employee shall be entitled to damages as 
allowed by law.  

12.   Waiver.  The waiver or failure to take action with regard to any breach of any 
term or condition of this Agreement shall not be deemed to constitute a continuing waiver or 
waiver of any other breach of the same or any other term or condition hereof.  

13.  Assignment.  This Agreement shall be binding on the Water Board, its 
successors, and assigns.  This Agreement is for the unique personal skills, knowledge, and 
experience of the Employee and is not assignable, or delegable, in whole or in part, by the 
Employee. 

14.   Modification.  No modification of this Agreement shall be binding unless 
executed in writing and signed and dated by each of the parties thereto to be bound. 

15. Notice.  All notices required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall 
be addressed to the parties as set forth in the preamble of this Agreement, or to such other 
address as may be designated by a party by notice given in accordance with the provisions of this 
Paragraph. 

16. Arbitration.  Any controversy or claim arising out of, or relating to this 
agreement, or the breach thereof, or otherwise arising out of the Employee’s employment, or the 
termination of that employment (including, without implication of limitation, any claims of 
unlawful employment discrimination) shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be settled by 
arbitration in any forum and form agreed upon by the parties or, in the absence of such an 
agreement, under the auspices of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) in 
Niagara County, New York, in accordance with the Employment Arbitration Rules of the AAA, 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 094



20191211 Page 6 

including but not limited to the rules and procedures applicable to the selection of arbitrators.  
The arbitrator shall not have the power to add to or subtract from the terms of this Agreement.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, this arbitration provision shall not preclude either party from 
pursuing a court action for the sole purpose of obtaining a temporary restraining order or a 
preliminary injunction in circumstances in which such relief is appropriate, provided that any 
other relief shall be pursued through an arbitration proceeding pursuant to this section. 

            17.       Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any 
person or circumstance is held unenforceable, such provision shall be automatically reformed 
and construed so as to be valid, operative and enforceable to the maximum extent permitted by 
law or equity while preserving its original intent.  The invalidity of any clause in this Agreement 
shall not affect the validity of any other clause.     

18. Headings.  Paragraph headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience 
of reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this 
Agreement.   

19. Construction.  Each and every provision of this Agreement has been mutually 
negotiated, prepared and drafted, and each party has been represented by legal counsel or had the 
opportunity to be represented by legal counsel in connection with the construction of any 
provision hereof or deletions herefrom. 

20. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced in accordance 
with the laws of the State of New York. 

21. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and delivered via 
email or facsimile transmission, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 095



20191211 Page 7 

22. Entire Agreement.  The terms and provisions of this Agreement constitute the 
entire agreement between the parties and supersede any previous oral or written 
communications, representations, or agreements with respect to the subject matter thereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and 
year first above written. 

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD  

By: _____________________________   ____________ 
Daniel O’Callaghan, Chairman   Date

_____________________________   ____________
Brian Majchrowicz    Date
Employee

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 096



Appendix A 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 097



MSCS Adopted 12/21/17      Exempt Class 

DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF FINANCIAL SERVICES-NFWB 

DISTINGUISHING FEATURES OF THE CLASS:  The incumbent in this position shall assist the Director of 
Finance in the administration of the accounting, auditing and control, and budgeting functions of the Niagara Falls 
Water Board.  This position calls for the exercise of a high level of authority and discretion.  The incumbent reports 
directly to the Director of Finance and may act for or in place of the Director during his/her absence. 

TYPICAL WORK ACTIVITIES: 
Provides training, direct supervision and day-to-day conflict resolution to staff of the Financial Services 

Department’s various operating units which consist of: Accountant, Billing Clerk and Secretaries on appropriate 
policies and procedures as related to the payroll and audit functions; 

Establish and interpret policies for the Niagara Falls Water Board and work with other executives in providing high 
level direction in business decisions aligned with organizational goals; 

Oversees the development of instructions for the use of automated accounting systems, resolves related problems 
and trains employees to use the systems; 

Under the direction of the Director of Financial Services, supervises and controls financial activities related to 
general ledger accounting, grants and contracts, budget control, financial reporting, cash management, accounts 
payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and disbursements, payroll accounting, bank reconciliation, and all 
other financial aspects; 

Consults with bank officials, bond counsels and fiscal advisors and recommends short-term investment of funds; 
Works with outside auditors; 
Facilitates the management of financial operations of the Water Board, including financial systems, preparation of 

reports, financial analysis, adequate controls, and internal audits over all systems; 
Consults with the Director of Financial Services and other Directors to carry out the Water Board’s business and 

finance policies; 
Compiles data and financial information; 
With the approval of the Director of Financial Services, recommends, defines and implements financial 
 procedures for fiscal operations; 
Provides fiscal input and financial guidance in activities such as payroll systems, insurance programs, and 

purchasing procedures; 
Provides forecast of Water Board resources and requirements to aid management, departments and others in making 

budget and long-range plans; 
Can be expected to oversee all accounting functions of the NFWB. 

The above examples of duties are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work performed.  The 
omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related 
or a logical assignment to the position. 

FULL PERFORMANCE KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, ABILITIES AND PERSONAL CHARACTERISTICS:
Thorough knowledge of fund accounting functions and business administration practices and procedures; working 
knowledge of applicable state and local laws and regulations; thorough knowledge of accounting principles, 
methods and budgetary procedures; ability to prepare and analyze a variety of financial reports and records; good 
knowledge of the use of computers in the application of word processing, spreadsheets and data base management 
relative to accounting functions; ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with others;  ability 
to prepare and present complex written and oral reports clearly and concisely honesty and integrity; dependability; 
physical condition commensurate with the demands of the position. 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

A)   Graduation from a regionally accredited or New York State registered college or university with  
       Master’s degree in Accounting, Finance, Business Administration or Public Administration with   
       major coursework in accounting and three (3) years of full-time, paid experience in 
       accounting or financial administration. 

OR 

B)   Graduation from a regionally accredited or New York State registered college or university with   
         a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting, Finance, Business Administration or Public Administration  
       with major coursework in accounting and five (5) years of full-time, paid experience in  
       accounting or financial administration. 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 098



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2019-12-015 

CHANGE ORDER FOR WATER TREATMENT PLANT CAULKING CONTRACT 

WHEREAS, the Niagara Falls Water Board (“Water Board”) Water Treatment Plant 
(“WTP”) requires that certain caulked wall panel, door, window, and other joints be replaced, as 
the existing caulking is failing due to its age; and 

WHEREAS, on behalf of the Water Board, Clark Patterson Lee engineers prepared bid 
specifications and an invitation to bid for the required caulking work; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board awarded the bid to Raymond E. Kelley, Inc., as the lowest 
responsible bidder; and 

WHEREAS, the bid was let based on unit prices, and the Water Board desires to perform 
additional caulking work beyond the original amount authorized and to extend the duration of the 
caulking contract to allow time to complete that work; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that on behalf of the Niagara Falls Water Board, its Executive Director 
hereby is authorized to execute a change order for the Water Treatment Plant Caulking Contract 
with Raymond E. Kelley, Inc., to increase the Water Board funds approved for that project by 
$48,698.40 and to extend the duration of that contract through September 30, 2020. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Executive Director 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 

On December 16, 2019, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 099



 

 

26 Mississippi Street 
Suite 100 
Buffalo, NY 14203 
cplteam.com 
716.852.2100 TEL 
716.852.2120 FAX 

Change Order Form 
Owner  

Architect  

 Contractor  

 Field  

 Other  

THIS DOCUMENT HAS IMPORTANT LEGAL CONSEQUENCES.  ATTORNEY CONSULTATION, WITH RESPECT TO ITS 

COMPLETION OR MODIFICATION, IS ENCOURAGED. 

 

 

 

The Contract is changed as follows:  

Additional caulking and left rental to complete the building 

 Total for this Change Order: $48,698.40      
 

Not valid unless signed by the Owner, Architect and the Contractor. 

 

CHANGE ORDER NO.: 1 
  

DATE:   December 12, 2019 
  

ARCHITECT’S PROJECT NO.: 14143.01 
  

CONTRACT DATE: April 2019 
  

CONTRACT FOR: NFWB 
  

SED PROJECT NO(s).: 20180003 

PROJECT: Water Treatment Plant Caulking 

(Name & address) 5815 Buffalo Ave 

 Niagara Falls, NY 14304      

       

       

CONTRACTOR: Raymond E. Kelley, Inc. 

(Name & address) 33 Main St 

 Bowmansville, NY 14206 

       

SED  

PROJ. MANAGER Donald Warda 

The original ( Contract Sum)( Guaranteed Maximum Price) was:  $101,680.00 

The net change by previous Change Order(s) is: 0.00 

The ( Contract Sum)( Guaranteed Maximum Price) prior to this Change Order was:  $101,680.000 
The ( Contract Sum)( Guaranteed Maximum Price) will be ( increased) ( decreased) ( unchanged)  

by this Change Order in the amount of:  48,698.40 

The new ( Contract Sum)( Guaranteed Maximum Price) including this Change Order will be:  $150,378.40 
  

The Contract Time will be ( increased) ( decreased) ( unchanged) by (number in text form) (270) days:   

The date of Substantial Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is:  9/30/2020      

  

Architect: Contractor: Owner: 
CPL 

26 Mississippi Street, Suite 300 

Buffalo, NY 14203 

Raymond E. Kelley, Inc. 

33 Main St 

Bowmansville, NY 14206 

Niagara Falls Water Board 

5815 Buffalo Ave. 

Niagara Falls, NY 14304 

By: 

 

By:  By:  

Date:  Date:  Date:  

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 100



NFWB CAULKING WTP-CHANGE ORDER

ITEM RATE $/SQFT LOW LIFT TOTAL FT COST

WINDOW CAULKING $7.15 52 23 941 363 1379 $9,859.85

DOOR CAULKING $7.15 19 19 104 56 19 217 $1,551.55

PRECAST CAULKING $9.90 109 171 1541 1869 240 3930 $38,907.00

LIFT RENTAL $1,690.00 1 1 2 $3,380.00

TOTAL $53,698.40

GUARD HOUSE CLEAR WELL MAIN BLDG-SOUTH MAIN ROOF WALL

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 101



1

Sean Costello

From: Robert Rowe

Sent: Thursday, December 12, 2019 9:50 AM

To: Jay Meyers

Cc: Pat Fama; Sean Costello

Subject: Fw: Sealant cost projections

Jay,  

Here are the figures to finish the entirety of the WTP site buildings wit exterior caulking.   
As we get closer to the end of this year, it looks like we will likely have approximately $5,000 left on the 
original contract as well.  

Thanks,  
Rob  

From: Don Warda <DWarda@REKELLEY.COM> 
Sent: Thursday, December 12, 2019 9:03 AM 
To: Robert Rowe <rrowe@NFWB.org> 
Subject: Sealant cost projections  

Rob, 
We are currently quantifying work completed in 2019, and have projected that we are very close to having used up the 
current contract total value of $ 101,680. 
This includes all door, window, louver, lift and contingency funding. 
Footage and all associated cost will be given in the AIA month end invoice documents. 
Per your request, I have quantified and budgeted the remaining work areas, using the same contract unit pricing, which 
we can hold for a spring start. 
Guard House:
Window caulk:    52 l.f. @ $ 7.15/lf = $ 371.80 
Door caulk:          19 l.f. @ $ 7.15 / l.f. = $ 135.85 
Precast caulk:     109 l.f. @ $ 9.90 / l.f. = $ 1,079.10 
Total cost :  $ 1,586.75

Clear Well:
Louver caulk:       23 l.f. @ $ 7.15/lf = $ 164.45 
Door caulk:          19 l.f. @ $ 7.15 / l.f. = $ 135.85 
Precast caulk:     171 l.f. @ $ 9.90 / l.f. = $ 1,692.90 
Total cost :  $ 1,993.20

Low Lift Building:
Window /louver caulk:     941 l.f. @ $ 7.15/lf = $ 6,728.15 
Door caulk:                         104 l.f. @ $ 7.15 / l.f. = $ 743.60 
Precast caulk:                    1,541 l.f. @ $ 9.90 / l.f. = $ 15,255.90 
Lift:                                      1 month @ $ 1,690 / mnt. = $ 1,690.00 
Total cost :  $ 24,417.65

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 102



2

Completion of Main Building – south and partial east elevations:
Window /louver caulk:     363 l.f. @ $ 7.15/lf = $ 2,595.45 
Door caulk:                         56 l.f. @ $ 7.15 / l.f. = $ 400.40 
Precast caulk:                    1,869 l.f. @ $ 9.90 / l.f. = $ 18,503.10 
Lift:                                      1 month @ $ 1,690 / mnt. = $ 1,690.00 
Total cost :  $ 23,188.95

Main building roof top wall elevations:
Door caulk:          19 l.f. @ $ 7.15 / l.f. = $ 135.85 
Precast caulk:     240 l.f. @ $ 9.90 / l.f. = $ 2,376.00 
Total cost :  $ 2,511.85

Overall Total $ 53,698.40
This would include all remaining exterior precast structures and elevations at the facility.
All the above footages would be re-verified on a month to month basis.
Indicated footages should be very close to actual.

Donald J. Warda, V.P.
Raymond E. Kelley, Inc.
33 Main Street
Bowmansville, N.Y. 14026
Tel: 716-684-3550
Fax: 716-684-3554
Mobile: 716-818-0329
www.rekelley.com

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 103



Page 1 of 1

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2019-12-016 

AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF CLAIM BY RIVERSIDE CONDO. ASSN. 

WHEREAS, on or about May 1, 2019, Claimant, Riverside Condo. Assn., by its 
President, Janet Downs, filed a Notice of Claim for damage to the electrical connection to its 
building at 8121 Valle Dr. allegedly caused by Water Board work; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Board desires to settle the claim in order to buy its peace and 
avoid litigation;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board be and is hereby authorized to pay the 
sum of $1,459 to Riverside Condo. Assn. as settlement in full of the Notice of Claim sworn to on 
May 1, 2019, in exchange for a General Release. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
General Counsel 

Water Board Budget Line or Capital Plan Item with Funds for this Resolution: 

On December 16, 2019, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to Board

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 104



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 105



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 106



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 107



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 108



Page 1 of 2

NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD RESOLUTION # 2019-12-017 

GRANTING THE STATE OF NEW YORK AUTHORITY  
TO PERFORM AN ADJUSTMENT OF NIAGARA FALLS WATER BOARD 

FACILITIES AND AGREEMENT TO MAINTAIN FACILITIES  
ADJUSTED VIA THE STATE-LET CONTRACT,  

PROJECT IDENTIFICATION NO. 5813.59 

WHEREAS, the New York State Department of Transportation proposes a construction, 
reconstruction, or maintenance project named “Highway Rehabilitation Project, NY 265 
(Military Rd.) from US 62 (Niagara Falls Blvd.) to NY 182 (Packard Rd.),” in the City of 
Niagara Falls, Niagara County, Project No. 5813.59 

WHEREAS, the State will include as part of the construction, reconstruction, or 
improvement of the above-mentioned project adjustments to the Water Board’s facilities that are 
presently located in the New York State Right-of-Way, specifically adjustment of manhole cover 
elevations per the contract documents on Water Board sewer lines pursuant to Section 10, 
Subdivision 24, the State Highway Law, as shown on the contract plans relating to the project 
and meeting the requirements of the owner; and 

WHEREAS, the service life of the relocated and/or replaced utilities has not been 
extended; and 

WHEREAS, the State will provide for the reconstruction of the above-mentioned work, 
as shown on the contract plans relating to the above-mentioned project; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT  

RESOLVED, that the Niagara Falls Water Board approves the proposed adjustment of 
manhole cover elevations and the above mentioned work to be performed on the project and 
shown on the contract plans relating to the project and that the Niagara Falls Water Board will 
maintain or cause to be maintained the adjusted facilities performed as above-stated and as 
shown on the contract plans; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Water Board’s Director of Technical and 
Regulatory Services has the authority to sign, with the concurrence of the Board of Directors, 
any and all documentation that may become necessary as a result of this project as it relates to 
the Niagara Falls Water Board; and 

*  CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE  * 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 109



Page 2 of 2

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Secretary to the Niagara Falls Water Board is 
hereby directed to transmit five (5) certified copies of the foregoing resolution to the New York 
State Department of Transportation. 

Water Board Personnel Responsible for Implementation of this Resolution: 
Director of Technical and Regulatory Services 

On December 16, 2019, the question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to 
a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 

Yes No Abstain Absent 
Board Member Forster [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Kimble [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Larkin [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Board Member Leffler [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 
Chairman O’Callaghan [        ] [        ] [        ] [        ] 

Signed By: 

________________________________ 
Daniel T. O’Callaghan, Chairperson

Vote Witnessed and Certified By: 

________________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, Secretary to the Board

CERTIFICATION 

I, Sean W. Costello, duly appointed and qualified as General Counsel and Secretary to 
the Niagara Falls Water Board, do hereby CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted at 
a meeting duly called and held in the office of the Niagara Falls Water Board, a quorum present 
on the 16th day of December 2019, and that said copy is a true, correct and compared copy of the 
original resolution so adopted and that the same has not been revoked or rescinded. 

WITNESSETH, my hand and seal this ____ day of December, 2019. 

_______________________________ 
Sean W. Costello, General Counsel and 
  Secretary to the Board 

December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 110



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 111



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 112



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 113



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 114



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 115



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 116



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 117



December 16, 2019 NFWB Meeting Packet Page 118


	1  Agenda - December 2019.pdf
	2  Draft November 2019 Meeting Minutes.pdf
	3  2019-12-9 Personnel Actions.pdf
	Sheet1

	4  RESOLUTION 2019-12-002 -  2020 Board Meeting Schedule.pdf
	5  Board Meeting Dates 2020.pdf
	6  RESOLUTION 2019-12-003 -  Mollenberg-Betz Project 6 Mechanical Work and Materials.pdf
	7  Mollenberg-Betz Project 6 Proposal.pdf
	8  RESOLUTION 2019-12-004 -  Ferguson Project 6 Underground Work.pdf
	9  Ferguson Proposal - Effluent Disinfection PL20513.pdf
	10  RESOLUTION 2019-12-005 -  Award Bid for WTP Electrical Preventative Maint.pdf
	11  BID#W2019-03 Annual Electrical Preventative Maintenance Board Agenda Item.pdf
	12  RESOLUTION 2019-12-06 - GHD CA CI Services for Project 2.pdf
	13  GHD Project 2 CA CI Proposal.pdf
	11194110Fama-2
	1. Scope of Services
	2. Schedule
	3. MWBE/SDVOB Participation
	4. Fee

	Figure 1 - Proposed Project  Schedule

	14  RESOLUTION 2019-12-007 -  Award Bid for Maintenance of Elevators.pdf
	15  BID #2019-27 Maintenance of Elevators  Dumbwaiters NFWB Agenda Item.pdf
	16  RESOLUTION 2019-12-008 -  Authorizing Pro Rata Settlement of Claim for Hydrant Damage.pdf
	17  Pro Rata Settlement Proposal.pdf
	19-4213184 dec page.pdf
	19-4213184 pro rata.pdf
	19-4213184 niagara falls release.pdf

	18  RESOLUTION 2019-12-009 -  Authorizing Settlement of Claim by Heather Dobson.pdf
	19  Notice of Claim - Dobson, Heather.pdf
	20  RESOLUTION 2019-12-010 Exercise Year 3 Option - Annual Audit.pdf
	21  Supporting Document - EFPR Annual Audit Proposal.pdf
	22  RESOLUTION 2019-12-011 CPL 2020 Extension Proposal.pdf
	23  CPL 2020 Extension Proposal.pdf
	24  RESOLUTION 2019-12-012 Extend WTP Sludge Hauling Bid.pdf
	25  Modern Extension Request Alum Residue 2019_2020.pdf
	26  RESOLUTION 2019-12-013 - Safety Specialist Compensation.pdf
	27  RESOLUTION 2019-12-014 - Employment Agreement with Deputy Director of Financial Services.pdf
	28  2019-12-11 DRAFT 2020-2022 Majchrowicz Contract.pdf
	2019-12-11 DRAFT 2020-2022 Majchrowicz Contract.pdf
	Appendix A.pdf
	Deputy Director of Financial Services CURRENT.pdf

	29  RESOLUTION 2019-12-015 - Change Order - WTP Caulking Contract.pdf
	30  Caulking Contract Change Order.pdf
	ChangeOrder-1 (002).pdf
	CO-1 (002).pdf
	Microsoft Outlook - Memo Style.pdf

	31  RESOLUTION 2019-12-016 - Settle Riverside Condo. Assn. Claim.pdf
	32  Notice of Claim - Riverside Condo Assn - 8121 Valle Dr.pdf
	33  RESOLUTION 2019-12-017 -  Authorizing State DOT to Adjust Manhole Elevations Military Rd..pdf
	34  DOT Request - Adjustment of Manhole Elevations on Military Road.pdf



